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Cily Commissioners
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We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
discretely presenied component units, each major fund and aggregate remaining fund information of the City of West Fargo,
Noith Dakota, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2008, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents, These financial statements are the responsibility of the City of West Fargo,
North Dakota management. Our responsibliity is to express opinions on these financial statemeants based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accardance with auditing standards generally acceptad In the United States of America and the
standards applicable fo financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and signilicant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation, We believe that our audit provides a reasonabla basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements refarred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the governmental aclivities, the business-type actlvitles, the discretely presented companent units, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of West Fargo, North Dakota, as of December 31, 2008, and
the respeclive changss in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Audifing Standards, we have also issued our report dated August 3, 2009, on our
consideralion of the City of West Fargo, North Dakota internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of Its
compliance with cerlain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of
that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results
of that testing, and not to provida an opinion on the internal controi over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is
an integral part of an audit performed In accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in
assessing the results of our audit.

The management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 3 through 10 and pages 38
through 39 are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures,
which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the meihods of measurement and presentation of the
required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the City
of West Fargo, North Dakola's basic financial statements. The schedule of fund activity is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements of the City of West Fargo, North Dakota. The
schedule of fund aclivity has been subjected fo the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements
and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

ol Lot

Robert R. Pelerson
Stats Auditor

August 3, 2009



CITY OF WEST FARGO
Woest Fargo, North Dakota

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
December 31, 2008

As management of the City of West Fargo, we are pleased to offer readers of the City of West Fargo’s
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the City’s financial activities for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2008. We encourage readers to consider it in conjunction with the additional
information presented in the basic financial statements, the fund financial statements, and the notes to

the financial statements.
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

= The tofal net assets of governmental activities of the City of West Fargo decreased by $76,235 as
a result of current year operations, or less than 1%. The decrease is primarily due to the
transfers of capital assets to business activities.

+ Net asseis of the business-type activities increased by $6,001,711, or 15%. The increase is
primarily due transfer of capital assets from the governmental funds.

» Total revenues from all sources were $24,071,235 for governmental activities on the statement of
activities and $25,426,487 on the modified accrual basis. Total revenues from all sources were
$5,865,855 for business-type activities.

= Total cost of all programs was $32,479,887 for governmental and business type activities. This is
an increase of $13,073,135 over 2007. The main reason for this Increase was capilal assets
included in business expense and not in transfers as reported in 2007,

« Governmental net capital assets totaled $66,859,391 at December 31, 2008 and net assets
equity was $50,598,071.

* Governmental expenditures exceeded revenues by $18,564,968 in the fund-based staiements
due to spending $15.8 million on infrastructure projects construction in progress. Governmental
activities expenses exceeded revenue by $76,235 (after fransfers to enterprise activities).

+ Unreserved fund balance for the General Fund was $4,672,058 or 64% of the total 2008 general
fund expenditures.

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT
This annual report presents the following three components of the financial statements:
1. Government-wide financial statements provide information for the City as a whole.
2. Fund financial statements provide detalled information for the City’s significant funds.

3. Notes to the financlal statements provide addifional information that is essential {o understanding
the government-wide and fund statements.

This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements.

Government-wide financial statements

The govemment-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the
City of West Fargo’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The Stalement of Net Assels presents information on alt of the City's assets and liabilities, with the
difference betwsen the two reported as nef assefs. Over time, increases or decreases in et assels may
serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.
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CITY OF WEST FARGO
Management's Discussion & Analysis - Continued

The Statement of Activities presents information on how the City's net assets changed during the most
recent fiscal year. This statement is presented using the accrual basls of accounting, which means that
all changes In net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change oceurs,
regardiess of the liming of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in the
statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (for example,
uncollected sales tax, and earned but unused vacation leave). Both the Statement of Net Assets and the
Statemeant of Aclivities present information as follows:

« Governmental activities — this includes most of the City's basic services which are primarily
supported by property and sales taxas, intergovernmental revenues, user fees and interest income.

» Business-type aclivities — this includes those services which are intended to recover all or a
significant part of their costs through user fees. The government-wide financial statements are
found on pages 11-12.

Fund financial statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of West Fargo, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. '

The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the City's significant funds — not the City
as a whaole. The City's funds can be divided into three categories - governmental funds, proprietary
funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental
activifies in the government-wide financial statements. The governmental fund statements provide a
detailed shori-term view of the government operations and the basic services it provides, and are
reported on the modified acerual basis of accounting which focuses on available expendable resources.
This allows the reader to evaluate the City's short-term financing requirements. Because the focus of
governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to
compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental aclivities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may batter
understand the long-term impact of the government's near-ferm financing decisions. Both the
governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilltate the comparison between the governmental
funds and the government-wide financial statements. :

The City of West Fargo maintains 24 individual governmentat funds, Information is presented separately
in the governmental fund balance sheet and statement of revenues, axpenditures, and changes in fund
balances for the general fund, and the following major funds: sales tax fund, debt service fund, and
special assessment construction (capital projects) fund. Data from the 19 other spscial revenue
governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation titled “Other Governmental
Funds”. The governmental fund financial statements are found on pages 13-16.

The City of West Fargo adopts an annual budget for the general fund, sales tax fund, and the special
assessment debt service fund, Budgetary comparison statements have been provided to demonstrate
compliance. The budgetary comparison schedules for the general fund and city sales tax fund are found
on pages 38-3%. A budgetary comparison schedule is not required, nor presented for the debt service
fund.

Proprielary funds - the City of West Fargo maintains iwo types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are
used to report activities that charge for services it provides fo outside customers. The enterprise funds
are presented as business-type activities in the government-wide statements. City of West Fargo uses
enterprise funds to account for its Sanitation and Water and Sewer operations, as major funds.
Proprietary fund statements provide the same type of information as the government-wide statements,
only in more detail.




CITY OF WEST FARGO
Management's Discussion & Analysis - Continued

The basic proprietary fund statements are found on pages 17-19.

Fiduclary Funds — the City of West Fargo is responsible for other assets that are held on behalf of others.
The City is responsible for ensuring the assets reported in these funds are used for their intended
purpose. The City's fiduciary activitles are reported in separate Statements of Fiduciary Net Assets.
These activities have been excluded from the City’s other financial statements since the Gity cannot use
these assets to finance its operations.

The basic fiduciary fund statement is found on page 20.
Notes to the financial statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided In
the government-wide and fund financial statsrenis. The notes fo the financial statements can be found
on pages 21-37 of this report.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE

The following two tables’ present condensed information on the City's Net Assets and Changes in Net
Assets for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008. As noted earlier, net asssts may serve over time as
a useful indicator of the City's financial position. In the case of the Cily of West Fargo, assets exceeded
lizbilities by $167,101,853 at the close of the most recent fiscal year, an overall increase of $5,925,476.
The City of West Fargo's net assets includes its investment in capital assets (e.g. land, buildings,
infrastructure, machinery, and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still
outstanding. The City of West Fargo uses these capital assets to provide services to its citizens:
consequently, these assels are not available for future spending. Although the City of West Fargo's
investment in its caplal assets Is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other spurces, since the capital assets themselves
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

TABLE 1
MET ASBETS

December 31, 2008

Business-
Governmental Type
Agctivities Activities Total
ASSETS:
Current Assels $ 14,884,775 § 10,760,781  $ 25,645,556
Noncurrent Assets 73,058,375 - 73,058,375
Capltal Assets (net of accumulated depreciation) 66,281,387 117,342,498 183,623,885
Total Assets $154,224 537  $128,103,279 $282,327 818
LIABILITIES:
Current Liabillties $ 12,129,856 $ 1,394,846 $ 13,524,702
Long-Term Liabilities 91,496,610 10,204,651 101,701,261
Total Liabilities $103,626,466 § 11,509,497 $115,225,963
NET ASSETS:
Invested in Capital Assets, net of Related Debt $(36,123,615) $105,987,773 $ 60,884,158
Resfricied 90,649,006 - 00,649,096
Unrestricted (3,927,410) 10,516,000 6,588,509
Total Net Assets $ 50,598,071  $116,503,782 $167,101,853




CITY OF WEST FARGO

Management’s Discussion & Analysis - Continued

TABLE 1
NET ASSETS
December 31, 2007

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

As of December 31, 2008

Governmental  Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS:
Current Assets $ 16,748,842  § 10,215450 $ 26,064,092
Noncurrent Assets 74,688,018 - 74,688,018
Capital Assets (net of accumulated depreciation) 63,084,076 112,141,819 175,235,895
Total Assets $154,530,736 $122,357,269 $276,888,005
LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities $ 12,183,548 $ 1,379,388 $ 13,562,934
Long-Term Liabilities 91,215,698 10,475,812 101,691,510
Total Liabilities $103,3089,245 $ 11,855,198 $115,254,444
NET ASSETS; '
Invested in Capital Assets, net of Related Debt  § (37,847,924)  $100,550,072 $ 62,702,148
Resiricted D2,716,226 - 02,716,226
Unrestricied (3,736,812) 9,951,889 6,215,187
Tolal Net Assets § 51,131,480 $110,502,071 $161,633,561
TABLE Il

Revenues
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services
Operating Grants & Contributions
Capital Granis & Confributions
General Revenues:
Taxes
Siate Aid
Interest Earnings
Miscellanspus Revenus
Total Revenues
Expenses
General Government
Public Safety
Highways and Streets
Interest and Service Charges
Sanitation
Watsr and Sewer
Total Expenses

Excess before transfers

Transfers

Net Assets — January 1

Prior Period Adjustment

Net Assets — January 1, as restated
Net Assets — Decemnber 31

Governmenial  Business-Type
- Activities Activities Total
$§ 887,075 $ 5,481,264 $ 6,368,339
316,006 - 316,006
10,321,386 8,468,373 18,789,759
10,662,358 - 10,662,358
760,977 - 760,977
965,172 124,218 1,088,390
158,251 260,373 418,634
$24.071,235 $ 14,334,228 $ 38,405.463
$ 3,318,781 3 - $ 2,749,619
3,827,784 - 3,827,784
13,002,517 - 13,002,517
4,080,608 - 4,080,608
- 1,616,575 1,616,575
- 6,533,722 6,533,722
$24,329,690 $ 8,150,297 3% 31,910,825
P (258,455) $ 6,183,831 $§ 5925476
$ 182,220 $  (182220) % -
$51,131,400 $110,502,071 $161,633,561
(457,184) - {457,184}
$50,674,306 110,502,071 $161,176,377
$50,598,071 $116,503,782 $167,101,853




CITY OF WEST FARGO

Management’s Discussion & Analysis - Continued

TABLE Il

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

As of December 31, 2007

Governmental  Business-Type
Activities Agtivities Total
Revenues
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services $ 1123175 § 5,046,825 $ 8,170,000
Operating Grants & Contributions 289,810 - 289,810
Capital Grants & Coniributions 11,673,457 825,671 12,499,128
Genetal Revenues:
Taxes 12,151,278 - 12,151,278
State Aid 645,068 - 645,068
Interest Earnings 1,264,712 186,179 1,450,891
Miscellaneous Revenue 584,927 366,109 951,036
Total Revenues $ 27,732 427 $ 6,424,784 $ 34,157,211
Expenses
General Government $ 2,134,186 $ “ $ 2,134,186
Public Safety 2,823,316 - 2,823,316
Highways 3,234,478 - 3,234,478
Economic Development 20,590 - 20,580
Other 514,107 - 514,107
Interest and Service Charges 3,535,505 - 3,835,505
Sanitation - 1,560,526 1,660,526
Water and Sewer - 5,184,145 5,184,145
Total Expenses $ 12,662,182 § 6,744,671 $ 19,406,853
Excess before transfers/special items $ 15,070,245 § (319,887) $ 14,750,358
Transfers (40,145,251) 40,145,251 -
Net Change in Assets $(25,075,006)  $ 39.825364 $ 14,750,358
Net Assets — January 1 $ 76,206,496 $ 70,676,707 $146,883,203
Net Assets — December 31 b 51,131,400 $110,502,071 $161,633,561

A portion of the City of West Fargo’s net assets totallng $90,649,098 represents resources that are
subject to external restrictions on how they may be used (primarily debt service). The large negative
invested in capital assets net of related debt equity shown totaling ($36,123,615) in governmental
acfivities is due to debt issued for capital projects for infrastructure project capital assefs not yet
completed. The remaining negative balance of unresirictad net assets ($3,736,812) may be used to meat
the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. At the end of the 2008, the City of West
Fargo is able to report positive balances in all three categories of net assets for the government as a
whole, and one of three categories for its separate governmental activities, while the business-type
activities showed positive balances in both categories. The City of West Fargo's fotal net assels
increased by $5,925,476 (4%) for the year ended December 31, 2008. The main reason for the increase
was an increase in business-type activities net assets equity of $6 million as a result of new assessment
districts for water and sewer projects; as well as an $8 million capital coniribution from governmental
activities in the form of an infrastructure transfer for completed projects.

Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City of West Fargo uses fund accaunting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related legal reguirements.




CITY OF WEST FARGO
Management's Discussion & Analysis - Continued -

Governmental Funtds

The focus of the City of West Fargo’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of expendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Cily of
West Fargo's financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful
measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. As of the
end of the currant fiscal year, the City of West Fargo’s governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of $12,115,531. The total urreserved fund baiances are ($5,475,190) with the general
fund being a positive $4,672,058. The remainder of fund balance is reserved to indicate that it is not
available for new spending because it has already been committed fo pay debt service for capital
improvements

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City of West Fargo. At the end of the current fiscal
year, unreserved fund balance of the general fund was $4,672,058. Unreserved fund balance represents
64% of total 2008 genaeral fund expenditures. The fund balance of the City of West Fargo’s general fund
increased $384,975 (9%) during the current fiscal year. The main reason was increased transfers from
construction funds for administration.

The debt service fund has a total fund balance of $17,590,721, all of which is reserved for the payment of
debt service.

Proprietary Funds

The City of Wesi Fargo’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-
wide financial statements, but in more detal,

Unrestricted net assets of the Heaith and Sanitation Fund totaled $870,620, and for Water and Sewer
Funds $9,645,305. Total growth in net assels for these funds was $6,001,717. The majority of this

increase is afiributable to a transfer of completed infrastructure totaling $8 million from in the form of a
capital grant from governmental activities, and also parily due fo an increase in rates for user fees.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights
The cily amended the original general budget {reserve) expenditures to $844,188.
* Revenue exceeded expected amounts by $104,145 (2%).

= Expenditures were below appropriations by $368,360 (5%).

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATIDN

Capital Assets

The City of West Fargo's investment in capital assets for its govemmental and business-type activities as
of December 31, 2008, amounts to $184,201,889 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investrnent in
capital assels includes land, infrastruclure, buildings, Improvements, machinery and equipment, and
construction in progress. This represents an overall increase in capital assets of $8,965,994 {5%).

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included new street, street lights, storm sewer,
and sewer and water projects capilalized in infrastructure and construction in progress in new
subdivisjons.




CITY OF WEST FARGO

Management's Discussion & Analysis - Continued

TABLEIN
CAPITAL ASSETS

(Net of Accumulated Depreciation)

December 31, 2008 and 2007

2008 2007
Businsss- Business-
Governmental Type Governmental Typs
Activities Aclivities Total Activities Activities Total

Land $ 3,503,806 $ 372500 $ 3,876,306 $ 3,503,308 $ 372500 §$ 3,878,308
Land Improvements - 562,768 562,768 - 750,358 750,358
Buildings 1,392,820 1,007 461 2,400,281 1,442,926 1,043,442 2486368
Equipment 970,444 1,063,293 2,033,737 1,056,757 1,275,322 2,332,079
Infrastructure 44,200,112 108,451,241 162,741,353 44,693,821 102,814,962 147,508,783
Construction in Progress 16,702,200 5,885,235 22,587,444 12,396,766 5,885,235 18,282,001
Total Capifal Assels $66,859,391 $117.342498  $184,201,880  $63,094,076 $112,141,819 $175,235,895

Additional information on the City of West Fargo's capital assets can be found in Note 4D on pages 29-30

of this report.

Long-Term Debt

At year-end, the City had total debt of $113,232,911, a net overall increase of $965,820 over the prior
year. Note 4E to the financial statements describes the City’s long-term debt in greater detail.

The City issued new debt for Special Assessment Refunding Bonds in the amount of $15,665,000 for
various water, sewer, light, sidewalk and street projects.

During the year ended December 31, 2008, the City's bond rating remained at A-2

TABLE IV

OUTSTANDING LONG-TERM DEBT

As of December 31, 2008

Governimeirial Activities:
G.O. Bonds Payable
Revenue Bonds
Special Assessment Bonds
Compensated Absences

Total Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities:
Sewer Bends
Contracts Payable
Loan Payable
Compensated Absences

Tofal Business-Type Aclivilies

Total Long-Term Debt

Total Total

Cutstanding Outstanding Due Within
Dec. 31, 2007 Increases Decreases Dec. 31, 2008 One Year
$ 620,000 % - % 15000 § 508,000 $ 115,000
3,435,000 - 620,000 2,815,000 620,000
96,887,000 15,665,000 14,742,000 97,810,000 8,377,000
527,002 52,320 - 579,322 57,832
$101,469,002  $15,717,320 $15,477.000 $101,709,322 $9,169,932
% 10,355,000 % - § 285000 $ 10,070,000 $ 275,000
257,323 - 28,701 228,622 28,702
979,423 - - 979,423 100,000
185,766 59,778 - 245 544 24 544

$ 11,777.512  § 59778 % 313,701 $ 11,523,589 $ 428,246
$113,246,514  $15,777,008 $15,790,701 $113,232,911 $9,598,178




CITY OF WEST FARGOD

Management's Discussion & Analysis - Continued

TABLE IV

QUTSTANDING LONG-TERM DEBT
As of December 31, 2007

Total Total
Cutistanding Outstanding Due Within
Dec. 31, 2006 Increases Decreases Dec. 31, 2007 One Year
Governmental Aciivities:
G.0. Bonds Payable $ 725000 § - § 105,000 $ 620,000 $ 115,000
Revenue Bonds 4,035,000 - 600,000 3,435,000 620,000
Special Assessment Bonds 87,404,000 16,925,000 7442000 96,887,000 8,517,000
Sheyenne Specials 8,471 - 8,471 - -
Compensated Absences 561,364 - 34,362 527,002 52,700
Total Gavernmental Activities $ 92,733,835 $16,925,000 $8,188,833 $101,469,002 $9,304,700
Business-Type Activities:
Sewer Bonds $ 10,630,000 3 - % 275,000 § 10,355,000 $ 285,000
Contracts Payable 283,661 - 26,338 257,323 28,702
Compensated Absences 241,202 - 55,436 185,766 18,876
Total Business-Type Activities $ 11,154,863 § - § 356,774 $ 10,798,089 §$ 332,278
Total Long-Term Debt $103,888,698 $16,925,000  $8,546,607 $112,267,091 $9.,636,978

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

Projects in 2008 that boosted the economy in West Farge included the additioh of $14,962,061 in various
street, water and sewer, storm sewer, street lighting projects in various new subdivisions of the city. Also
the cily issued 91 single family building permits in 2008. The City anticipated that the level on new
construction will continue fo be down in 2008. The 2009 budget for the City of West Fargo increased
water rates and assessed an additional forestry charge of .50 for the purpose of mowing city owned lots.
The budget included noe mill tevy increase. The value of a mill for the City is expected to increase from
$63,194 to $67,900 per mill.

Total appropriations for operations for 2009 increased by approximately $1,101,453 from the 2008
budget. This 6.40% increase Is caused primarily by increases in Capital Purchases as well as increases
in employee salaries and benefits,

CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City's finances and 1o demansirate
the City's accountability for the money it receives to the citizens of West Fargo. if you have any questions
about this report or need further information, contact the City of West Fargo Finance Department, 800 4™
Ave. E., West Fargo, ND 58078 or visit us online at www.westfargond.gov.
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CITY OF WEST FARGO
West Fargo, North Dakota

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
December 31, 2008

ASSETS:

Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Intergovernmental receivable
Taxes receivable

Special assessments receivable - current

Long-Term Receivabla:

Long-term special assessments receivable

Capital Assets:
Land
Improvemens to land
Buildings
Equipment
Infrastructure
Construction in progress

Total Capital Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payabie
Ratainages payable
Inierest payable
Long-Term Liabililiss;

Poriion Dua or Payable Within One Year:

Loan payable

Bonds payahle
Confracts payable
Compensated absences

Portion Due or Payable After One Year:

Loan payable

Bonds payable
Confracts payable
Compensated absences

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Resftricled for:
Debt service
Unresiricted

Total Net Assels

Primary Governmant

Component Units

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total Alrport Library
$§ 12854248 § 1033833 § 23,192,587 $ 88716 § 253,963
1,114,289 422,442 1,536,731 - -
102,629 - 102,629 2,694 11,567
813,609 - 813,609 - -
13,058,375 - 73,058,375 - -
3,503,806 372,500 3,876,306 100,000 -
- 562,768 562,768 - -
1,392,820 1,007 461 2,400,281 236,282 -
970,444 1,063,293 2,033,737 7,565 -
44,290,112 108,451,241 152,741,353 - -
16,702,209 5,885,235 22,587,444 - -
$ 66,859,391 $ 117342498 $ 184,201,889 $ 343847 % -
§ 154,802,541 $ 128,103,279 § 282,905,820 $ 435,257 $ 275,530
$ 578,004 & - 578,004 $ - § -
1,275,002 - 1,275,002 - -~
642,142 75,208 718,050 - -
- 100,000 100,000 - -
9,792,000 295,000 10,087,000 - -
- 29,062 29,962 - -
57,932 24 553 82,485 - 2,488
- 879,423 679,423 - -
91,338,000 9,775,000 101,113,000 - -
- 198,660 198,660 - -
521,390 220,991 742,381 - 22,389
§ 104,204,470 $§ 11,500487 % 115,803,957 $ - § 24877
§ (36123615} ¢§ 105,987,773 § 69,864,158 § 343847 % -
90,648,096 - 90,649,096 - -
(3,927 410) 10,518,009 6,588,699 91,410 250,653
$ 50,598,071 $ 116,503,782 $ 167,101,853 $ 435257 % 250,653

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF WEST FARGO
Waesl Farge, Norh Dakota

STATEMENT QF ACTIVITIES
For the Year £nded Daecember 31, 2008

Program Revenues

Net {Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Assals

Fees, Fines, Cperating Capitat
and Charges  Grants and Grants and Governmental  Business-lype Component Linils
Funclions/Programs Expenses for Services  Contributions  Conlributions Aclivilias Activitias Tolal Airport Libirary
Primary Governmeni:
Governmeantal Aclivilies:
General governmert § 3,318,781 § 577,774 % G6573% % - % (2,675,271) 3 (2,675271)
Public safety 3,927,784 294,065 127,064 - {3.506,651) (3.506,651)
Highways and slteels 13,002,517 15,235 123,203 10,321,386 (2,542,693} (2,542,693}
Interest on long-ierm dety 4,080,608 - - - (4,080,608} {4.080,608)
Total Governmental Activities $24,329600 § 887,075 $ _ 316,006 $10,321,386  $(12,805,223) $ (12,805,223}
Business-Type Aclivities:
Waler and sewer % 8,533,722 $ 3,916,25G $ - $ 8,468,373 % - § 5,850,807 % 5,850,907
Heallh and sanitation 1,616,575 1,565,008 - - - {51,667) (31,567)
Total Business-Type Activilies ~_ § 8,150,207 § 548,264 § - § 8,468,373  § - § 5799340 § 5799340
Total Primary Government §32,479,987 5 6,368,330 % 316,006 §18,789,759 $(12,805,223) $ 5,794,340 % (7,005,883
Component Unpjls;

Library $ 570,486 § - & - 8 - 5 - § (570,486)
Airport 143,642 - - - (143,642) -
Total Component Units 5 714128 % - % - § - § (143,842} § (570,486)

General Revenugs:
Taxes:
Property taxes, levied for general purposes $ 5,166,926 § - § 5,166,926 § 124,502 $ 541,467
Property laxes, fevied for debt service 2,830,345 - 2,839,345 - -
Sales laxes 2,520,390 - 2,520,390 - -
Franchise laxes 135,697 - 135,607 - -
State aid distribution 750,977 - 760,977 23,025 13,443
Unrestricted investment interest 565,172 124,218 1,089,390 4,693 16,539
Sale of lols 8,898 - 8,898 - -
Miscellaneous 149,363 260,373 409,738 15,216 19,400
Transfers 182,220 (182,220) - - -
Total General Revenues and Transfers $ 12,728,088 § 202,371 § 12,931,359 $ 167,436 § 590,549
Changae in Nel Assels 5 (76,235) $ 6,001,711 § 5925476 3 23,794 § 20,063
Mol Assels - January | $ 51,131,490 $110,502,071 § 161,633,561 $ 411,463 % 230,590
Prior Pariod Adjusiment {4157,184) - {467,184) - -
Net Assets - January 1, as restated § 50,674,306 §110,502,071 $ 161 LI76,377 5 411,463 § 230,590
Net Asseats - Deceaber 31 3 50,508,071 $118,303,762 $ 187,101 853 B 435,257 § 250,653

Thae notes to he financial slatements are an inlegral part of this stalement.




CITY OF WEST FARGOD
West Fargo, North Dakota

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
December 31, 2008

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Taxes recejvable
Special assessments receivable - cuirent
Speclal assessments receivable - deferred
Due irom other city funds

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Retainages payable
Due to other city funds
Deferred revenuas

Toial Liabilities

Fund Balances:
Reserved for:
Debt service
Unreserved, reported fc
General fund
Speclal ravenue funds
Capital project funds

Total Fund Balances

Tofal Liabilities and Fund Balances

Sales Debt Capital Other Total
General Tax Service Projects Governmental  Governmantal
Fund Fund Funds Funds Funds Funds
$4,542662 $6103.807 5 024,381 § - § 1,283308 § 12,854,243
129,396 - 979,423 - 5,470 1,114,289
85,318 - 3,231 - 14,080 102,629
- - 813,608 - - 813,609
- - 73,058,375 - - 73,058,375
- - 15,686,917 - - 15,686,917
54,757,376 56,103,857 §91,465936 3 - § 1302858 § 103,630,067
) - % - 8 - § 578,004 § - 5 578,004
- - - 1,275,002 - 1,275,002
- - - 15,686,917 - 15,686,917
85,318 - 73,875,215 - 14,080 73,074,613
$ 85318 & - _$73875215 § 17,539,923 % 14,080 $ 91514536
$ - § - §$17.590,721 § - § - % 7,590,721
4,672,058 - - - - 4,672,058
- 6,103,897 - - 1,288,778 7,382,675
- - - (17,539,923) - (17.539,923)
$4.672,058 $6,103,807 $17.590,721 § (17.639,823) § 1288778 § 12,115,531
_$4,757.376 56103897 $91 465036 § - § 1,302858 % 103,630,067

The notes fo the financial slatements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF WEST FARGO
West Fargo, North Dakota

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
December 31, 2008

Total Fund Balances for Governmental Funds $ 12,115,531

Total net assefs reperted for governmental activities in the statement of net assets
is different because:

Capital assets usad in governmental acivities are not financial resources and
therefors are not reported in the funds. Those assets consist of:

Land § 3,503,808
Infrastructure, net of $6,918,036 aceumulated depraciation 44 290,112
Construction In progress 16,702,209
Buildings, net of $679,178 accumulated depreciation 1,362,820
Equipment, net of $1,384,129 accumulated depreclation 970,444
Total Capital Assets 66,859,391

Some of the City's taxes and spaclal assessmenis will be collected after year-
end, but are not available soon encugh lo pay for tha current perlod's
expenditures and therefore are reported as deferred revenue in the funds. 73,074,813

Long-term liabilities applicable to the City's governmental aciivities are not
due and payable in the current period and accordingly are not reported as
fund liabilities. Interest on long-term debt is not accrued in governmenial
funds, but rather is recognized as an expenditure when due. Al liahilities
--both current and long-term--are reported in the statement of net assets.
Balances at December 31, 2008 are:

Accrued interest on bontds § (642,142)
Bonds payable (101,130,000)
Compensated absences (579,322)
Total Long-Term Liabilities (102,351,464)
Total Net Assets of Governmental Activities $ 50,598,071

The notes to the financial staiements are an integral part of this statement.

14



CITY OF WEST FARGO
West Fargo, North Dakota

STATEMENT QF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended December 31. 2008

Revenues:

Taxes and special assessments
Licenses, permits and fees
Charges for services
Intergovernmental

Fines, forfeitures and penalties
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

General government
Public safety

Highways and strests
Debt Service;

Principal

fnterest and fiscal charges
Capital outlay

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Proceeds from bond sale
Transfers in

Transfers out

Total Other Financing Sources
and Uses

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances - January 1

Fund Balances - December 31

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Sales Debt Capitai Other Total
Generai Tax Service Projects Governmental  Gevernmental

Fund Fund runds Funds Funds Funds
$ 3975927 § 2,520,390 § 13,990,060 % - 3 915,647 § 21,402,994
547,203 - - - - 547,203
- - - - 91,483 91,483
849,410 - - - 1,170,833 2,020,243
217,200 - - - - 217,200
257 960 161,147 562,934 49,459 115,864 1,147,364
5 5848700 % 2681537 5§ 14552904 3§ 49459 § 2,293,797 $ 25426487
$ 2.018,025 § - 3 - % - % 1,199,161 § 3,215,186
3,405,690 - - - 361,875 3,767,565
1,052,247 - - - - 1,052,247
- - 15,477,000 - 15,477,000
- - 4,095,262 - - 4,085,202
844,189 - - 15,540,067 - 16,384,258
5 7.31815% § - $ 19,572202 § 15540067 $§ 1,561,036 % 43,991,456
$ {1.469.451) $ 2,681,537 § (5,019,208) § (15,490,608} 5 732,761 § (18,564,969)
3 - 3 - § 5850000 $ 9815000 % - & 15,665,000
1,854,426 - 2,503,363 1,179,634 18.791 5.556,214
- (1,264,000} (3,077,447 {100,630) (831,918} (5,373,9493)
5 1,854,426 % (1,264,000) 3 5275916 § 10,854,004 § (913,125) $ 15,847,221
5 384975 § 1417537 § 256,708 § (4,596,604} § (180,364) § (2,717,748}
$ 4287083 § 4686380 $ 17,334,013 § (12.943,319) $ 1,460,142 § 14833279
5 4672058 § 6103897 § 17590721 § (17.539.923) § 1288778 § 12,115,531
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CITY OF WEST FARGO
West Fargo, Nerth Dakota

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

N FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Forthe Year Ended December 31, 2008

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds

The change in net assets reporied for governmental acivities in the statement of
activities is different because:

Governmental funds report capifal outlays as expenditures. Howevar, in the

statement of aclivities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated

useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which

capital outlays ($15,545,376) exceeded depreciation ($2,854,504} in the current period.

Capital grants to enlerprise funds are not recorded In the madified accrual basis of
accouniing; however, on the accrual basls a transfer is recorded In the governmental
funds and a capilal contribution is recorded in the enterprise funds.

Bond proceeds are reported as financing sources in governmental funds and thus
contribute fo the change in fund balance. In the statement of net asseis, however,
issuing debi increases long-term llabilities and does not affect the statement of
aclivities. Similarly, repayment of principal is an expenditure in the governmental
funds but reduces the liability in the statement of net assets,

Debt issuetd:

Special assessment bonds
Repaymenis:

Baond principal

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting used In the governmental funds,
expenditures are not recognized for transactions that are not normally paid with
expendable financial resources. In the statement of activities, however, which is
presented on the accrual basis, expenses and liahilifies are reported regardless
of when financlal resources are available. 1n addition, interest on long-term debt
is not recognized under the modified acerual basis of accounting untll due, rather
than as it accrues. This adjustment combines the net changes of the following
balances:

Net increase in compensated absences
Net decrease in interest payable

Special assessments levied in the current period are not considerad as available
reseurces in the governmental funds; however, they are revenues In the statement
of activities. Likewlse, collections of current special assessmenis are reported as
revenues in the governmental funds; however, they are a reduction of receivablas
in the statement of aclivities. The net effect |s:

Because some property taxes and special assessments will not be collectsd for
several months after year end, they are not considerad as available resources in the
governmental funds. However, they are revenues in the statement of activities. The
net effect is:

Net increase in taxes recejvable
Net increase in special assessments recaivable

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities

The notes to the financial stalements are an integral part of this statement.
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15,477,000
$ (52,320)
14,594

$

3

(2,717,748)

12,690,872

(8,468,373)

(188,000)

(37,726)

(1,629,643)

37,214
237,169

(76,235)



CITY OF WEST FARGO
West Fargo, North Dakota

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
DPecember 31, 2008

Business Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Water & Sewer  Sanitation &
Funds Health Fund Total
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and investments g 0,537,264 801,082 % 10,338,346
Accounts receivable 277,416 145,025 422 441
Total Current Assets $ 9,814,680 946,107 § 10,760,787
Noncurrent Assets:
Capital Assels:
Land $ 372,500 - % 372,500
Improvements to land 562,768 - 562,768
Building - 1,007,461 1,007,461
Equipment 688,012 374,380 1,063,292
GConstruction in progress 5,885,235 - 5,885,235
Infrastructure 108,451,241 - 108,451,241
Tatal Noncurrent Assets $ 115,060,656 1,381,841 $ 117,342,497
Total Assels $ 125,775,338 2,327,948 § 128,103,284
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Loan payable $ - 100,000 $ 100,000
Interest payable 75,908 - 75,908
Bonds payable 295,000 - 295,000
Conlracis payable - 29,962 29,962
Compensated absences 17,105 7,448 24,553
Total Current Liabilitics 3 388,013 137,410 % 525,423
Noncurrent Liabilities: '
Bonds payable 3 8,775,000 - % 9,775,000
Contracts payable - 198,680 198,660
Loan payable - 879,422 879,422
Compensated absences 153,951 67,040 220,991
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 3 9,028 951 1,146,122 § 11,074,073
Total Liabilities 3 10,316,964 1,282,532 § 11,599,496
NET ASSETS
Invesled in capital assets, net of related debt $ 105,812,077 174,786 $ 105,987,773
Unresiricted 9,645,395 870,620 10,516,015
Total Net Assets $ 115458372 § 1,045416 $ 116,503,788

The notes to the financiat statements are an integral part of this staterent,
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CITY OF WEST FARGO
West Fargo, Noirth Dakota

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
December 31, 2008

Operating Revenues:
Charges for sales services

Operating Expenses:
Water and sewer operating
Sanitation operating
Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income

Nonoperating Revenues {Expenses):
Invesiment eamnings

Miscellanecus

Interest expense

Total Nonoperating Revenue (Expenses)
Income Before Transfers

Transfers in
Transfers out

Changes in Net Assets
Net Assets - January 1

Net Assels - December 31

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Water & Sewer  Sapitation &
Funds Health Fund Total

g 3,916,256 $§ 1,565,008 % 5,481,264
$ 2,808,184 § - % 2,808,184
- 1,505,854 1,505,854

3,168,746 098,948 3,267,694

3 6,066,930 § 1,604,802 § 7,671,732
$ (2,150,674) § (39,794) % (2.190,468)
5 100,682 § 23537 $ 124,219
51,826 208,796 260,422
(466,836) {11,773) (478,809)
$ (314,528) $ 220,560 % {93,968)
% (2,465,202) § 180,766 $ (2,284,4386)
$ 8,686,153 § - % 8,586,153
(300,000) - {300,000)

$ 5,820,051 $ 180,766 % 8,001,717
$ 100837421 3% B64,660 % 110,502,071
$ 115,458,372 $§ 1,045416 § 116,503,788

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF WEST FARGO
West Fargo, North Dakota

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2008

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Total
Water & Sewer Sanitation & Enterprise

Operating Health Fund Funds
Cash Flows from Operaiing Acfivities:
Receipts from customers and users $ 3907160 § 1,657,247 $ 5,464,407
Paymenis fo suppliers {1,749,391) {(820,143) {2,569,534)
Paymenis fo employess {1,114,303) {662,204) (1,7786,507)
Net Cash Provided by Operaling Activities $ 1,0434668 $ 74900 § 1,118,366
Cash Flows from Moncapital Financing Acfivities:
Property, sales and use taxes 3 51,688 $ 208,785 § 260,373
Transfer In 117,780 - 117,780
Transfers out (300,000} - {300,000)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital Finanecing Aclivities § (130,632) § 208,785 § 78,163
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Principal paid on capital debt $ (285,000) § (28,703) % {313,703)
Interest paid on capital debt (466,836) {(11,773) (478,609)
Net Cash Used by Capital and Related Financing Activities $ (751,836) § {40,478) § {792,312)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Interest income b 100,682 $ 23,536 % 124,218
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 261,680 $ 266,745 § 528,425
Cash and Cash Equivalents - January 1 $ 9275584 % 534337 $ 0,809,921
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Dacember 31 $ 09537264 % 801,082 % 10,338,346

Reconciliation of Operating income (L oss) to Net Cash
Provided (Uised) by Operating Activities:

Operaling income (loss) $ {(2,150,674) § (39,794) § (2,190,468)
Adjusiments fo Reconcile Operating Income to MNet Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Dapreciation expense 3,168,746 98,948 3,267,694
Increase in uiility billing receivables (9,102) (7,761) {16,883)
Increase in compensated absences 36,273 23,507 58,780
Decrease in accounts payable (6) - (6)
Decrease in interest payable (1,771) - {1,771)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operaling Activities $ 1,043466 % 74000 § 1,118,366

The notes tb the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF WEST FARGO
West Fargo, North Dakota

STATEMENT OF FIDUGIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
December 31, 2008

Agency Funds
ASSETS:
Cash and investments $ 363,701
LIABILITIES:
Due to others $ 363,701

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

20



CITY OF WEST FARGO
West Fargo, North Dakota

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Decermber 31, 2008

| NOTE 1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES |

The City of West Fargo, North Dakota, operates under a home rule charter. The financial
statements of the City of West Fargo have been prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepied in the United States of America as applicable to governments.
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting
body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more
significant of the gavernment's accounting policies are described below.

A. Reporting Entity

The accompanying financial siatements present the acfivities of the City of West Fargo. The
City of West Fargo has considered all pofential component units for which the cily is
financially accountable, and other organizations for which the nature and significance of their
relationship with the city are such that exclusion would cause the city's financlal statements to
be misleading or incomplete. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has set forth
criteria to be considered in determining financial accountability. The criteria include
appointing a volting majority of an organization’s governing body and (1) the ability of the City
of West Fargo ta impose its will on that organization or {2} the potentiaf for the organization to
provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on the Cily of West
Fargo.

Based on these criteria, there are two component units to be included within the City of West
Fargo as a reporting entity.

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

The somponent unifs’ columns in the basic financial statements include the financial data of
the city's two component units. These units are reported in a separate column to emphasize
that they are legally separate from the city.

West Fargo Airport Authority - The City’s governing board appoints a voling majority of the
members of the Authority's Board. The city has the authorily to approve or modify the Airport
Authority’s operational and capital budgets. The city also must approve the tax levy
established by the Alrport Authorlty.

West Fargo Municipal Library - The City's governing board appoints a voting majority of the
membpers of the Library's Board. The city has the authority to approve or modify the Library's
operational and capital budgets. The city also must approve the tax levy established by the
Library.

Complete financlal statements for the component units may be obtained by contacting the City
Finanee Director at 800 4™ Ave. East, West Fargo, ND 5B078.
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CITY OF WEST FARGO
Notes to the Financial Statemenis

B. Government-wide and fund financial statements

Government-witle statements: The statement of net assets displays information on the
financial activities of the City, with the exception of the fiduciary activities. Reporting on the
internal activities has been eliminated to avold duplication on the statements. The stalements
distinguish between governmental activities — which are normally financed through taxes and
intergovernmental revenues — and business type activities — which are normally financed in
whole or in part by fees and charges for services. Likewise, the primary government is
reported separately from certain legally separate component units for which the primary
government is financially responsible.

The statement of activities compares the direct expenses and program revenues for both the
functions of the governmental activities and business-type activities of the City. Direct
expenses are clearly identifiable with a specific function. Indirect expenses allocations have
been eliminated for the statement of financial activities. Program revenues include 1) fines,
fees and charges for services to customers that benefit from the services provided, and 2)
operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants are contributions, including speciat
assessments. General revenues, including taxes, are those revenues that are not properly
classified as program revenue.

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the cily's
funds including its fiduciary funds and blended component units. Separate statements for
each fund category-governmental, proprietary and fiduciary-are presented. The emphasis of
fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a
separate column. Al remaining governmental funds are aggregated and reported as
nonmajor funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, results from exchange
transactions .associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are
those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating
revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings, result from nonexchange transactions
or ancillary activities.

The City reports the foliowing major governmeantal funds:

General Fund. The general fund is the general operating fund of the city. 1t is used to
account for all financial resources except those required to he accounted for in another fund.

Sales Tax Fund: The sales tax fund is used to account for the city sales tax revenue.

Debt Service Funds. Debt service funds are used to account for the accumulation of
resources for, and the payment of, lang-term debt principal, interest, and related costs.

Capital Projects Funds. Capital projects funds are used to account for financial resources,
including special assessments, to be used for the acquisition or construction of major capital
facilities, (other than those financed by proprietaty funds and trust funds).

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

Water and Sewer Fund: This fund accounts for the provisions of water and sewer services to
the residents of the City.

Sanitation & Heafth Fund: This fund is used to account for the provisions of garbage pickup
and landfill services o the residents of the City,
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CITY OF WEST FARGO
Notes to the Financial Statements

in addition, the City repotis the following fund type:

Agency Funds: Agency funds are used to account for assets held by the city as an agent for
individuals, private arganizations, other governments and/or other funds. Agency funds are
custodial in nature (assets equai liabilities) and do not involve measurement of resuits of

operations

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Government-wide, Proprietary, and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements; The government-
wide, proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements are reporled using the economic
resources measuremsnt focus. The government-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements are reported using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when
earned and expenses are recorded at the time the liabilities are incurred, regardless of when
the related cash flows take place. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes Is
recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants,
entiflements, and donations are recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility
reguirements have been satisfied.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements: Governmental fund financial statements are
reported using the current financlal resources measurement focus and the modified accrual
basls of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when they become both
measurable and available. The City considers revenues to be available if they are collected
within sixty days after year-end. Special assessments, intergovernmental revenues, charges
for services and Investment income are considered susceptible to acerual, Expenditures are
recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except principal and interest on long-term
debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as
expenditures to the extent they have matured. General capital asset acquisitions are reported
as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of long-term debt and acquisitions under
capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

Under the terms of grant agreements, the City funds certain programs by a combination of
specific cost-reimbursement grants and general revenues. Thus, when program expenses
are ncurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted net assets available to finance the
program. It is the City's policy fo first apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to such
programs, and then by general revenues.

The city follows the pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB), which Is the nationaily accepted standard setting body for establishing generally
accepled accounting principals for govarnment entities. For government-wide and proprietary
fund financial statements the city applies all GASB (Governmental Accounting Standards
Board) pronouncements as well as the FASB (Financial Accounting Standards Board)
pronouncements issued before November 30, 1988, unless those pronouncements conilict
with or contradict GASB pronouncemenis. The city does not apply FASB pronouncements
issued after November 30, 1989.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the city's policy fo
use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

D: Assets, Liabilities and Equity

1. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

Cash and Cash Eqguivalents include amounts in demand deposits and meney market
accounis.

Investments consist of certificates of depasit, with a maturity date in excess of 90 days, stated
at cost.
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2. Receivables and Payables

Activities between funds that are representative of lending/borrowlng fransaction outstanding
at the end of the fiscal year are designated as either “due to other funds” or “due from other
funds” in the governmental fund financial statements. Any residual balances outstanding
belween the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the
government-widse financial staternents as “internal balances”,

All real estate is assessed as of the current value on February 1% of each year, Property
taxes are aftached as an enforceable lien on the real estate and become due on January 1%
of the year following the assessment date. A 5% reduction of the taxes Is allowed if the taxes
are paid in full by February 15",

Penalty and interest are added on March 1% if the first half of the year taxes is not paid.
Additional penalty and interest are added October 15™ to those taxes that are not paid. Taxes
are collected by the County and remitted to the Cily monthly.

The City is permitted under provisions of the Horme Rule Charter to levy taxes as needed for
general governmental services and payment of principal and interest on long-term debt.

3. Capital Asseis

Capital assels, which include property, plant and equipment, are reported in the applicable
governmental and business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial
statements. Capital assets are defined as having an individual cost of $5,000 or more and
have a useful life in excess of two years. Capital assetls are valued at historical or estimated
historical cost if actual cost historical cost is not available. Donated capital assets are valued
at estimated fair value en the date donated.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements, including infrastructure, are capitalized as
projects are constructed.

Depreciation has been provided over the estimated useful life, using the stralght-line method
for the City and the discretely presented component units, as follows:

Assets Years
Buildings 50
Equipment §5-20
Vehicles 5-10
Infrastructure 20 -40

4. Compensated Absences ‘

Employees accrue vacation leave at a rate of four hours per month for the first year of service.
The accrual rate is increased to seven hours par month from two to four years of continuous
service, and nine hours per month from five to nine years of service, twelve hours per month
from ten io fourteen years of service, fourteen hours per month from fifteen fo nineteen years
of service and sixteen hours per month for over twenty years of service. A maximum of 240
vacation hours is payable upon termination. Accumulated unpaid vacation is accrued whert
earned in the government-wide and proprietary fund statements.

Sick leave is accrued at a rate of four hours per month for from one to five years of service
and eight hours per month of continuous service after five years. A maximum of 480 hours
sick leave is payable upon termination with ten or more years of service. Accumulated unpaid
sick leave is accrued when earned in the government-wide and proprietary fund statements.
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5. Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund statements, long-term debt
and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental
aclivities, business-type activifies, or propristary fund type statement of net assets. Bond
premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life
of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bond issuance costs are reported as
deferred charges and amortized over the ferm of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond discounts and
premiums, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of the
debt is reported as other financing sources.

6. Fund Equit

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balances for
amounts that are legally segregated for a specific future use or are not available for
appropriations for expenditures or expenses.

7. Interfund Transactions

In the fund statements, transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures
initially made from it that are properly applicable to another fund, are recorded as
exXpenditures In the reimbursing fund and as reduction of expenditures in the fund that is
reimbursed. All other transactions, except reimbursements, are reporied as fransfers.

NOTE 2:

RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANGIAL STATEMENTS ]

A: Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the
government-wide statement of net assets:

The governmental fund balance sheet includes reconciliation between fund balance — total
governmental funds and net assets — governmental activities as reported in the government-
wide statement of net assets. One element of that reconciliation explains that “long-ferm
liabiiities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period and
therefore are not reported in the funds.” The details of the $38,482,540 differences are as
follows:

Total Governmental Fund Balances % 12115,531

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds 66,859,391

Cther long-term assets are not available to pay current period
expenditures and therefore are not reported in the funds 73,874,613

Lang-term liabilities, including bonds payable and accrued
interest payable, are not due and payable in the current
Period and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Bonds Payable
Interest Payable
Compensated Absences Payahle

$(101,130,000)
(642,142)
(579,322)

(102,351,464)

Net Assets of Governmental Aclivities

$ 50,598,071
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B: Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statements of revenue,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide staterment of activities:

The governmental fund statements of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances
includes a reconciliation between net changes in fund balance - fotal governmental funds and
changes in net assets of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide
statement of activities. One element of that reconciliation explains that “Governmental funds
report capital quilays as expendilures. However, in the statement of activities the cost of
those assets Is allocated over the useful lives and reported as depreciation expenses.” The
details of this $2,841,512 difierence are as follows:

Net Changes in Fund Balance-Governmental Funds $(2,717,748)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities the cost of those
assets is aliocated over their useful lives and reported

as depreciation expense. This is the amount that capital
outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period. 12,650,872

Accrued interest reported in the statement of activities does not
not require the use of current financial resources and, therefore,
are not reported as expendifures in the governmental funds. 14,594

Accrued compensated absences reported in the statement of
aclivities does not require current financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds. (52,320)

Capilal grants to enterprise funds are not reported in the fund financial
statements; however, a capital contribution s reported in the
enterpiise funds and a transfer is reported in the governmental
aclivities at the governmeni-wide lavel. (8,468,373)

Because some property taxes will not be coliected for several months
after year end, they are not considered as available revenues in the

governmental funds. Howsver, they are revenues in the statement
of acfivities. 37,214

Bond proceeds are reported as financing sources in governmental
funds and thus contribute to the changes in fund balance. In the
statement of net assets, however the, issuing debt increases
long-term liabilities and does not effect the statement of activilies.
Similarly, repayment of principal Is an expendifure in the govermnmental
funds but reduces the liabilily in the statement of net aasets. (188,000)

Special assessments levied in the current pericd are not considered
as available revenues in the governmentsl funds, however they are
revenues In the staiement of activities. Likewise collection of current
special assessments are reported as revenues in the governmental
funds, however they are a reduction of the receivables in the
statement of activities. The net effect is: (1,392,474}

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities $ (76,235)
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, NOTE 3: STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCCOUNTARBILITY |

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally
accepted accounting in the United States of America (GAAP) for the General Fund, Special
Revenue Funds, and the Debt Service Funds.

Based upon available financial informaffon and requests by the governing board, the city
auditor prepares the preliminary city budget. The city budget is by function and activity on the
modified accrual basis of accounting. The preliminary budgst includes the proposed
expenditures and the means of financing them. All annual appropriations lapse at year-end,

The governing board holds a public hearing where any taxpayer may testify in favor of or
against any proposed expenditure or tax levies requested in the preliminary budgst. After the
budget hearing and on or before October 1, the board adopts the final budget. The final
budget must be filed with the county auditor by Octobar 10. No expenditure shall be made or
liability incurred in excess of the total appropriation by fund. However, the governing hoard
may amend the budget during the year for any revenues and appropriations not anticipated at
the fime the budget was prepared. The board must approve fhe budget amendments and the
approval must be noted in the proceedings of the board.

The govarning board approved the following budget amendments to the 2008 city budget:

Fund # Fund Amendment
1001 General Fund Reserve $844,188
2030 City's Share of Specials 75,842
2070 Communications 250
2080 Road and Bridge 18,791
2120 | 911 Communications 331,131
2130 | Municipal Highway 903,128
2151 City Hall Remodeling 18,950
2200 | Vector Gontrol 87.419
2240 | Flood Control 8,753
2950 | Asset Forfeitures 15,380
7050 | Airport Authority 142,289

NOTE 4:

DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDSj

A. Deposits and Investments

In accordance with North Dakota Statutes, the city maintains deposits at the depository banks
designated by the governing board. All depositories are members of the Federal Reserve
Sysfem.

Deposits must either be deposited with the Bank of North Dakota or in other financial
institution situated and doing business within the state. Deposits, other than with the Bank of
Norih Dakota, must be fully insured or bonded. In lieu of a bond, a financial institution may
provide a pledge of securifies equal to 110% of the deposits not covered by insurance or
bonds,

Authorized collateral includes bills, notes, or bonds issued by the United States governmei,
its agencies or instrumentalities, all bonds and notes guaranteed by the United States
govemment, Federal fand bank bonds, bonds, notes, warrants, certificates of indebtedness,
insured cerlificates of deposit, shares of Investment companies registered under the
invesiment Companies Act of 1940, and all other forms of securities issued by the State of
North Dakota, its boards, agencles or instrumentalities or by any county, city, township, city,
park district, or other political subdivision of the state of North Dakota, whether payable from
special revenues or supported by the full faith and credit of the issuing body and bonds issued
by an other state of the United States or such other securities approved by the banking board.
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At year ended December 31, 2008, the city’s carrying amount of deposits was $23,800,006
and the bank balances were $25,012,925. Of the bank balances, $750,000 was covered by
Federal Depository Insurance. The remalning bank balances were collateralized with
securifies held by the pledging financial institution’s agent in the government's name.

Credit Risk:
The City may invest idle funds as authorized in North Dakota Statutes, as follows:

(a) Bonds, treasury bills and notes, or other securities that are a direct obligation insured or

guaranteed by, the treasury of the United States, or its agencies, instrumentalities, or
organizations created by an act of congress.

(b} Securities sold under agreements to repurchase written by a financial institution in which
the underlying securities for the agreement to repurchase are the type listed above.

{c) Certificates of Deposit fully insured by the federal deposit insurance corporation,

(d) Obligations of the state.

As of December 31, 2008, the city held certificates of deposit totaling $16,868,354,

The City’s bond rating was A-2 during the year ended December 31, 2008.

B. Receivables

Receivables as of the year-

end for the government's individual major and nonmajor funds are

as follows:
Debt Water & Health & | Nonmajor

Receijvables: General Service Sewer Sanitation Funds Total
Accounts $129,396 | § 979423 | $277.416 | $145,025 $ 5,470 $ 1,538,730
Taxes 85,318 3,231 - - 14,080 102,629
Specials-Current - 813,609 - - - 813,609
Specials-Deferred - 73,058,375 - - - 73,068,375
Total Net Receivables $214,714 | $74,854,638 | $ 277416 $145,025 $19,550 $75,511,343

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that
are not considered to be available to liquidate fiabilities of the current period. At the end of the

current fiscal year, the various com

funds were

as follows:

C. Inter-fund Receivables/Payables and Transfers

ponents of deferred revenue reported in the governmental

The amount of due toffrom other funds represents the $15,686,917 the capital projects funds
owe the debt service fund for over expending their share of the pooled cash account.

The following is a schedule of interfund transfers for the year ended December 31, 2008:

Transfers In
Debt Capifal Nonmajor Water

Transfers Qut: General Service Projects Funds Sewer Totals
Sales Tax Fund $ - | § 784,000 $ 500,000 $ - $ - $1,264,000
Debt Service 540,671 1,739,363 679,634 - 117,780 3,077,448
Capital Projects 100,630 - - - - 100,630
Nonmajor Govt, 913,125 - - 18,791 - 931,916
Water & Sewer 300,000 - - - - 300,000
Totals $1,854,426 | $2,503,363 $1,179,634 $18,791 $117,780 $5,6?3,994_|
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Transfers infout consist of the following:

D. Capital Assets

$300,000 from Water and Sewer to General to supplement other fund sources.
$903,126 from Highway tax to General to fund street expenses.

$100,630 from Capital project to gensral for administrative costs.
$764,000 from Sales tax to Debt Service for scheduled payment
$540,671 from Debt Service to General to close out funds.

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2008 was as follows for the City:

Balance Balance
Governmental Activities: 1-1-08 Increases Decreases 12-31-08
Capital assels not being depreciated:
Land $ 3,503,806 | $ -1 % - | $ 3,503,806
Construction in Progress 12,396,766 15,418,817 11,113,37 16,702,209
Total Capiial Assets, not being depreciated $15,900,572 | $15,418,817 | $1 1,113,374 | $20,206,015
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings $ 2,071,995 | $ -1 % - | $ 2,071,995
Equipment 2,228,013 126,559 - 2,354,572
Infrastructure 49,020,331 2,187,817 - 51,208,148
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated $53,320,339 | $ 2,314,376 & - | $55,634,715
L ess Accumulated Depreciation for:
Buildings $ 620080 | $ s0107]| $ -1 % 679,176
Equipment 1,171,256 212,871 - 1,384,127
Infrastructure 4,326,510 2,551,526 - 6,918,036
Total Accumulated Depreciation $ 6,126,835 | $ 2,854,504 | % - $ 8,981,339
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net $47,193,504 | $ (540,128) $ - | $46,653,376
Governmental Activities - Capital Assets, Net | $63,094,076 $14,878,689 | $11,113,374 | $66,859,391
Balance Balance
Business-Type Activities: 1-1-08 Increases | Decreasas 12-31-08
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 372,500 $ - |3 - $ 372,500
Construction in Progress 5,885,235 - - 5,885,235
Total Capital Assets, not being depreciated $ 6,257,735| § - 3 - $ 6,257,735
Capital assets being depreciated: ' ,
Land Improvements $ 3,751,796 $ -1 % - $ 3,751,796
Buildings 1,079,423 - $ - 1,079,423
Equipment 5,995,934 - 22,500 9,973,434
Infrastructure 105,699,258 8,468,373 - 114,167,631
Total Capital Assets, Being Depraciated $116,626,411 | $8,468,373 $22,500 $124,972 284
Less Accumutated Depreciation for:
Land lmprovements § 3.001438| § 187,590 | §$ - $ 3,189,028
Buildings 35,981 35,981 - 71,962
Eqguipment 4,720,612 212,029 22,600 4,910,141
Infrastructure 2,884,206 2,832,004 - 5,716,390
Total Accumuiated Depreciation $_ 10,642,327 | $3,267,694 $22,500 $ 13,887,521
Total Capiial Assets Being Depreciated, Net $105,884,084 | $5,200,679 $ - $111,084,763
Business-Type Activities - Capital Assets, Net | $112,141,819 $5,200,679 $ - $117,342 498
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Depreciation expense was charged to the following functions/programs of the City's
governmental activities for the cuirent fiscal year ($2,854,504):

Governmental Activities: Amounis
General Government $ 51,274
Public Safety 160,219
Highways and Streels 2,643,011
Total Depreciation Expense-Governmental Activities $2,854,504

Compoenent Unit — Airporf:

Capital Asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2008 was as follows for the Airport:

Balance Balance
Airport Authority - Governmental Activities: 1-1-08 Increases | Decreases | 12-31-08
Capital assefs not being depreclated: ' '
Land $100,000 $ - $ - | $100,000
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings $260,006 % - $ - | $260,008
Equipment 8,900 - - 8,900
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciaied $368,006 $ - 5 - $368,906
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Building $ 15,816 $ 7,008 $ - | § 23,724
Equipment 890 445 - 1,335
Total Accumulated Depreciation $ 16,706 $ 8,353 $ - $ 25,050
Total Capital Assats Being Depreciated, Net $352,200 $(8,353) | § - $343,847
Business-Type Activities - Capital Assets, Net $352,200 $(8,353) | % - | $343,847

E. Long-Term Debt

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities:

During the year ended December 31, 2008, the following changes occurred in long-term
liabifities of governmental and business-type activities:

Balance Balance Due Within
Governmental Activities: 1-1-08 Increases Decreases 12-21-08 Onea Year
General Obligation Bonds 5 820,000 % -13% 115000 | % 505,000 $ 120,000
Revenue Bonds 3,435,000 - 620,000 2,815,000 645,000
Special Assessment Bonds 96,887,000 15,665,000 | 14,742,000 97,810,000 9,027,000
Compensated Absences * 527,002 52,320 - 579,322 57,832
Total Governmental Activities | $101,468,002| $15,717,320 | $15,477,000 | $101,709,322 | $9,849 932

Balance Balance Due Within
Business-Type Activities: 1-1-08 Increases | Deacreases 12-31-08 One Year
Contracts Payable $ 257323 § - $ 28,701 $ 228622 3 29,962
Sewer Bonds 10,355,000 - 285,000 10,070,000 295,000
Compensated Absences * 185,766 59,778 - 245,544 24,544
Total Governmental Activities | $10,798,089 | $59,778 $313,701 $10,544,166 $349,506

*- Compensated absences arc reported as a net change for the year because changes in
salary prohibit exact calculations of additions and deductions.
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Coniracis Pavable — Business-Type Activities:

The City entered into a lease purchase on September 8, 2005 with Municipal Service Group
to purchase Sewer and Water equipment. The contract calls for annual payments of $40,474
with interest at 4%, through 2015.

The future minimum payments for these contracts are as follows:

Year Ending

Degember 31 Confracts

2009 $ 40,474

2010 40,474

2011 40,474

2012 40,474

2013 40,474

2014 40,474

2015 40,474

Total Contract Payments $283,318
Less: Amount Reprasenting interest {54,696)

Present Value of Cantract Payments $228,622

General Obligation Bonds — Governmental Activities:

The City issued general obligation bonds to provide funds for the construction of major capitat
assets for governmental type activities.

Generai obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the City.
These bonds generally are issued as 20 year serial bonds with equal amounts maturing each
year. General obligation bonds currently outstanding are as follows:

$1,030,000 Refunding Impravement Bond G.0. Bonds of 2003 due in
annual installments of $100,000 to $130,000 through 2012; interest at
3.0% to 3.65%. $505,000

Annual debi service requirements to maturity for general obligation bonds are as follows:

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES |
Year Ending G.C. Bonds Payable
December 31 Principal Interest

2009 $120,000 $15,113
2010 120,000 11,363
2011 130,000 7,170
2012 135,000 2,464
TOTALS $505,000 $36,108

The City also issued $15,665,000 of special assessment debt in 2008 to provide funds for the
construction of streets, water and sewer [lines, storm sewers and street lights in new
residential developments. These bonds will be repaid from amounts levied against the
property owners benefited by this construction. In the event that a deficiency exists because
of unpaid or delinquent special assessments at the time a debt sarvice payment [s due, the
city must provide resources to cover the deficiency until other rescurces, for example,
foreclosure proceeds, are received. Special Assessment honds currently outstanding are as
follows:
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Special Assessment Bonds:

$3,030,000 Refunding Improvement Bonds of 2003 - Series A, due in
annual installments of $50,000 to $305,000 through 2013; interest at
3.25% to 3.85%. $ 850,000

$1,120,000 Refunding Improvement Bonds of 2001 — Series B, dus in
annual instaliments of $106,000 through 2011; interest at 3.95% to
4.,15%. 315,000

$4,045,000 Refunding Improvement Bonds of 1998 - Series B due in
annual installments of $275,000 to $280,000 through 2013; interest at
4.0%. 1,385,000

$3,815,000 of Refunding Improvement Bonds of 2002, Series A, due in
annual installments of $260,000 through 2017; interest at 3.1% ta 3.6%. 2,340,000

$295,000 Sidewalk Warranis of 1999, due in annual installments of
$25,000 to $30,000 through 2010; interest at 5.25%. 55,000

$3,275,000 Refunding Improvement Bonds of 2002, Series B, due in
annual installments of $100,000 to $350,000 through 2012; interest at
3.75% to 4.0%. 4,140,000

$122,000 Sidewalk Warrants #6037 of 2001, due in annual installments
of $12,000 $14,000 through 2012; interest at 4.15% to 4.35%. 50,000

$3,975,000 Refunding Improvement Bonds of 2001, Series C, due in
annual installments of $265,000 through 2017; interest at 3.90% to 4.6%. 2,385,000

$3,495,000 Refunding Improvement Bonds of 2001, Series A, due in
annual installments of $165,000 to $240,000 through 2017; interest at
4.0% fo 4.5%. 2,055,000

$55,000 Sidewalk Warrants of 2003 {6039) due in annual installments of
$5,000 through 2014; interest at 4.5%. 30,000

$6,050,000 Refunding Improvement Bonds of 2003, Series C, due in
annual installments of $55,000 to $660,000 through 2015; interest at
3.0% to 4.0%. 3,285,000

$4,415,000 Refunding Improvement Bonds of 2003, Series D, due in
annual installments of $300,000 to $310,000 through 2018; interest at
3.0% io 4.25%. 3,035,000

$7,055,000 Refunding Improvement Bonds of 2003, Series E, due in
annual installments of $470,000 to $475,000 through 2019; interest at 5.175.000
3.0% to 4.25%. 2
$4,985,000 Refunding Improvement Bonds of 2004, Series A, due in
annual installments of $335,000 to $355,000 through 2019; interest at
4.0% to 4.4%. 3,805,000

$4,880,000 Refunding Improvement Bonds of 2004, Series B, due in
annual installments of $210,000 to $330,000 through 2020; interest at
3.0% to 4.0%. 3,775,000
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$135,000 Sidewalk Warrants 2004, due in annual installments of
$15,000 through 2014; interest at 5,0%. $ 90,000

$10,000,000 Refunding Improvement Bonds of 2005, Series A, due in
annual instaliments of $665,000 fo $670,000 through 2020; interest at
3.0% to 4.0%. 7,990,000

$11,545,000 Refunding Improvement Bonds of 2005, Series B, due in
annual installments of $785,000 to $805,000 through 2020; interest at
3.5% to 4.0%. 9,645,000

$730,000 Refunding Improvement Bonds of 2005, Series C, due in
annual installments of $240,000 to $505,000 through 20186; interest at
4.0%. 3,700,000

$6,605,000 Refunding Improvement Bonds of 2005, Series D, due in
annual installments of $440,000 to $445,000 through 2021; interest at
3.5% to 4.25%. 5,725,000

$9,975,000 Refunding Improvement Bonds of 2006, Series A, due in
annual installments of $670,000 to $715,000 through 2021: interest at
4.0%. 8,880,000

$225,000 Sidewalk Bonds of 2008, due in annual installments of $20,000
to $25,000 through 2016: interest at 4.1% 1o 4.25%. 185,000

$10,340,000 Refunding Improvemant Bends of 2007, Series A, due in
annual instaliments of $180,000 to $700,000 through 2023; interest at
4.0%. 9,865,000

$6,345,000 Refunding Improvement Bonds 2007, Series B due in annual
installments of $265,000 fo $460,000 through 2023; interest at 4.0% to
4.25%. 6,270,000

$240,000 Sidewalk Bonds of 2007, due in annual installments of $20,000
to $25,000 through 2020; interest 3.75% o0 4.1%. 215,000

$215,000 Sidewalk Bonds of 2008, due in annual installments of $25,000
to $20,000 through 2018; interest 3.15% to 4.0%. 215,000

$5,635,000 Refunding Improvement Bonds 2008, Series A due in annual
installments of $540,000 to $580,000 through 2018: interest 4.0%. 5,835,000

$2,735,000 Refunding lmprovement Bonds 2008, Series B due in annual
installments of $145,000 to $195,000 through 2023; interest 3.75% to
4.50%. 2,735,000

$7,080,000 Refunding improvement Bonds 2008, Series G due in annual
instaliments of $450,000 to $515,000 through 2024; interest 3.5% to

4.75%. 7,080,000
Total Special Assessment Bonds $97.810.000
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Annual debt service requirements to maturity for special assessment bonds are as follows:

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Year Ending Special Assessment Bonds Payable
December 31 Principal Interest

2009 $ 9,027,000 $ 3,601,003
2010 9,487,000 3,305,686
2011 9,252,000 2,961,539
2012 B,744,000 2,623,739
2013 8,605,000 2,292 665
2014 - 2018 36,700,000 6,810,635
2019 - 2023 15,545,000 1,274,804
2024 - 2026 450,000 10,687
TOTALS $97,810,000 $22,881,848

Revenue Bonds:

The City also issued bonds where the gavernment pledges income derived the acquired or
constructed asset to pay debt service and from the collection of a 1% city sales tax. Revenue

bonds outstanding at year end are as follows:

Governmental Activities:

$6,185.000 Sales Tax Revenue Bonds of 2002 due in annual instaliments
of $575,000 to $760,000 through 2012: interest at 3.85% to 4.4% -
governmental funds (Governmental Activities).

Business-Type Activiiies:

$10,820,000 Water & Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 2005, due in annual
installments of $260,000 to $700,000 through 2030; interest at 4.0% to
5.0% - enterprise funds (Business-Type Aclivities).

$175,000 Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 1993A, due in annual
installments of $10,000 through 2013; interest at 2.5% - enterprise funds
{Business-Type Activities).

Total Business-Type Activities Revenue Bonds

$_2,815,000

$10,020,000

50,000

$10,070,000

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the sales tax revenue bonds are as follows:

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Year Ending Revenue Bonds Payable
December 31 Principal Interest
2009 $ 645,000 $119,180
20140 690,000 93,380
2011 720,000 64,400
2012 760,000 33,440
TOTALS $2,815,000 $310,400
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Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the enterprise revenue bonds are as follows:

ENTERPRISE ACTIVITIES
Year Ending ____Revenue Bonds Payable

December 31 Pringipal Interest
2009 $ 285,000 $ 454,824
2010 305,000 443 174
201 315,000 431,123
2012 330,000 418,674
2013 340,000 405,624
2014 - 2018 1,875,000 1,814,956
2019 - 2023 2,325,000 1,378,923
2024 - 2028 2,815,000 790,850
2029 - 2031 1,370,000 103,500
TOTALS $10,070,000 $6,241,648

F. Contingent Liability

Amounts received from grantor agencles are subject to audit and adjustments by grantor
agencies, principally the federal government. Any disaillowed claims, including amounts
afready collected, may constitute a kability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of
expenditures that may be disaliowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time,
although the government expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

G. Pension Plan

The Cily of West Fargo contributes to the North Dakota Public Employees’ Retirement
System (NDPERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan
administered by the State of North Dakota. NDPERS provides for retirement, disability and
survivor benefits to plan members and heneficlaries. Benefit and contribution provisions are
administered in accordance with chapter 54-52 of the North Dakola Century Code. NDPERS
issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for NDPERS. That report rnay be obtained by writing to NDPERS,
400 E Broadway, Suite 505, PO Box 1214, Bismarck, North Dakota, 58502-1214.

Plan members are required to contribute 4% of their annual covered salary. The city is
required fo coniribute 5.12% of the employee’s salary, which consists of 4.12% for emplayee
retirement and 1% for the retiree health benefits fund. The city has agreed to pay 100% of
the member assessments in Jieu of a salary increase. The contribution reguirements of plan
members and the city are established and may be amended by the State legislature. The
city's contributions to NDPERS for the years ending December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 were
$241,570, $228,953, and $194,015, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each
year.

INOTE 5:

INDIVIDUAL FUND DEFICITS |

The following funds were in a deficit cash position at December 31, 2008:

Fund Balance

Nonmajor Fund - Special Revenue:

Vector Control $ (32,687)
Debt Service Funds (Major):

Sidewalk 2004 (6,810)

2008B (19,018)
Capital Projects Funds {Major):

Total Capilal Projects Funds (16,970,732)
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The city will take appropriate action concerning these deficits by ufilizing one or a combination
of the following methods:

» Transfer General Fund moneys sufficient to relieve deficits.
¢ Issue bonds to finance capital projects.
» Collsct Special assassments to relieve deficits.

[NOTE &:

RISK MANAGEMENT |

The City of West Fargo is exposed to various risks of loss related io torts; theft of, damage to,
and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.

In 1986, state agencies and political subdivisions of the State of North Dakota joined fogether
to form the North Dakota Insurance Reserve Fund (NDIRF), a public entity risk pool currently
operafing as a comman risk management and insurance program for the state and over 2,000
polilical subdivisions. The City of West Fargo pays an annual premium to NDIRF for its
general liability, auto, and inland marine insurance coverage. The coverage by NDIRF Is
limited to losses of fwe million dollars per occurrence for general fiability and automobile and
$3,411,364 for mobile equipment and portable properly.

The City of West Fargo also participates in the North Dakota Fire and Tornado Fund and the
State Bonding Fund. The city pays an annual premium to the Fire and Tornado Fund to cover
property damage to buildings and personal property. Replacement cost coverage is provided
by estimating replacement cost in consultation with the Fire and Tornade Fund. The Fire and
Tornado Fund is reinsured by a third party insurance carrier for losses in excess of one million
dollars per occurrence during a 12-month period. The State Bonding Fund currently provides
the city with blanket fidelity bond coverage in the amount of $2,000,000 for its employees.
The State Bonding Fund does not currently charge any premium for this coverage,

The City of West Fargo has workers compensation insurance with North Dakota Workforce,
Safety and Insurance and provides healih, dental and vision insurance benefits for full-time
employees through Blue Cross Blue Shield of North Dakota. The city pays 100% for single
coverage or 75% of family or single with dependents coverage.

Setiled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the
past three years.

QPEN CONSTRUGTION PROJECTS |

The city had 11 construction projects open at year-end. The fotal amount of construction
costs in progress was $12,998,632 with contract amounts of $18,089,614 leaving total
construction commitments of $5,070,982 at December 31, 2008.

NOTE 8;

CONDUIT DEBT |

From time to time, the City of West Fargo has lent their name to private industries fo help
them secure community development block grant loans. The loans are issued for the
acquisition and construction of industrial and commercial facilities deemed to be in the public
interest. The loans are secured by the properly financed and are payable solely from
payments received on the underlying morfgage loans.  Upon repayment of the loans,
ownership of the acquired facllities transfers to the private-sector entity. The City is not
obligated in any manner for repayment of the loans. Accoardingly, the loans are not reported as
liabilities in the accompanying financial statements.
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The total principal balance of the four CDBG loans issued fo SnoBear Industries, LLC totaled
$400,000 at December 31, 2008. The outstanding principal balance on those loans was
$395,785.

INOTE 9:

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS |

In February, April, May and June of 2009, the City Commission approved the issuance of the
following bond issues:

= $6,015,000 of 2009 Refunding Improvement Bonds, Series A. The bonds were issued
for various street, water & sewer and other infrastructure improvement projects.

» 5,460,000 of 2009 Refunding Improvement Bonds, Series B. The bonds were issuad
for various street, water & sewer and other infrastructure improvement projects,

» $2,225,000 of 2009 Sales Tax Improvement Bonds. The bonds were issued for the g™
Street Overpass project.

= $10,000,000 of 2009 General Obligation Artetlal Street Bonds. The bonds were issued
for various street infrastructure improvement projects.

e $530,000 of Capital Financing Bonds. The bonds were issued for Water/Sewer project
#1210.

= $570,000 of Tax Increment Revenue Bonds of 2009. The bonds were issued to finance
the Charleswood 25" project.

[NOTE 10:

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES |

The City is defendant in certain lawsuits incldent to its operations. In the opinion of City
Counsel and management, such claims against the City not covered by insurance would not
materially affect the financial condition of the City.

[NOTE 11:

DEBT DEFEASANCE ]

At the January 21, 2008 board meeting, the West Fargo City County Commission moved to
refund the remaining 2003 Refunding Improvement Bonds, Series B, to obiain interest
savings and realize an economic gain. $5,790,000 of Refunding Bonds, Series 2008A with an
effective frue interest rate of 3.68% were issued to refund the remaining 2003B bonds totaling
$6,225,000 for a total cost savings of $429,201 and $253,756 in net present value savings
{economic gain) over the remainder of the bonds.

[NOTE 12:

A prior period of adjustment totaling a reduction of $457,184 was made to beginning net
assets of the governmental activities, The adjustment was necessary fo correct prior period
errors related to beginning capital assats for an error in beginning construction in progress. A
sumimary of the adjustments is included in the table below.

Governmental Activities
Net Assets Equily as previously reported $51,131,490
Adjustments to restate the January 1, 2007 net
assels equity for capital assets:
Capital Assets — Construction in Progress (457,184)
Net Assets Equity December 31, 2007 as restated $50,674,306
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CITY OF WEST FARGO
West Fargo, North Dakota

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

GENERAL FUND
For the Year Endad December 31, 2008

Revenues:
Taxes
Licenses, Permits & Fees
Intergovernmental
Fines
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

General Govemment
Public Safety
Highways & Streets
Capital Qutlay

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Usas):
Transfers In

Net Changes in Fund Balances

Fund Balance - January 1

Fund Balance - December 31

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget

$ 4,106,385 § 4,106,385 $ 3,976,927 -$ (129,458)
572,000 572,000 547,203 (24,797}
615,000 615,000 848,410 234,410
286,170 286,170 217,200 {68,970}
165,000 165,000 257,860 92,960

$ 5744555 $ 5744555 $ 5,848,700 $ 104,145
$ 21413958 $ 2,113,958 $ 2,016,025 $ 97,933
3,680,929 3,680,929 3,405,690 275,238
1,047 435 1,047,435 1,062,247 {4,812)
483,000 844,189 844,189 -

$ 7325322 § 7686511 $ 7,318,151 § 368,360
$ (1,580,767) $ (1,941,956) § (1,469451) $§ 472,505
$ 1,250,000 § 1,260,000 § 1,854,426 $ 604,426
$ (330,767) $ (691,956) $ 384975 $ 1,076,931
$ 2390,112 $ 2,390,112 % 4,287,083 $ 1,896,971
$ 2059345 $ 1,698,156 $ 4672068 § 2,973,002

The accompanying required supplementary information notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
SALES TAX FUND
For the Year Ended December 31_, 20038

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
Revenues:

Taxes $ 2000000 $ 2000000 $ 2,520,380 § 520,390

Miscelianeous 5,000 5,000 161,147 156,147
Total Revenues $ 2005000 $§ 2005000 $ 2,681,537 $ 876,537
Expenditures:

Current: $ - § - $ - & -
Excess {Deficlency) of Revenues

Over Expenditures $ 2005000 $ 2,005000 $ 2,681,537 $ 676,537
Other Financing Sources (Uses);

Transfers Qut $ (1,265000) § (1,265,000) $ (1,264,000) $ 1,000
Net Changes in Fund Balances $ 740,000 § 740,000 § 1417537 $ 677,537
Fund Balance - January 1 $ 4501916 $ 4,501,916 % 4,686,360 $ 184,444
Fund Balance - Degember 31 $ 5241916 § 5241916 § 6103897 % 867,981

The accompanying required supplementary information notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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CITY OF WEST FARGO
West Fargeo, North Dakota

NOTES TQ THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
December 31, 2008

| NOTE +:

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY l

Budgetary Information:

The governing body adopts an annual budget on a basis consistent with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America for the general fund, each
special revenue fund and each debt service fund of the municipality. The city is required fo
present the adopted and final amended revenues and expendilures of these funds.

The following procedures are followed in esiablishing budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements:

U]

On or before September 10th of the preceding fiscal year, the city prepares a preliminary
budget for the next succeeding year beginning January 1. The preliminary budget
includes a breakdown of the estimated revenues and appropriaticns.

The governing body halds a public hearing where any taxpayer may testify In faver or
against any proposed dishursements or tax levies requested In the preliminary budget.
After the budget hearing and on or before October 7th, the board adopts the final budget.

The final budget must be filed with the county auditor by Octoher 10th.

No dishursement shall be made or liability incurred in excess of the total appropriation by
fund. However, the governing body may amend the budget during the year for any
revenues and appropiiations not anticipated at the time the budget was prepared. The
budget amendments must be approved by the governing board and the appraval must be
noted in the official proceedings of the board.

All appropriations lapse at year-and.
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CITY OF WEST FARGD

Waest Fargo, Norh Dakota

SCHEDULE OF FUND ACTIVITY - CLIENT GENERAL LEDGER BASIS
For the Year Ended Decamber 31, 2008

General Fund (Major)
Genera) Fund Reserve

Total General Fund

SBpsclal Revenue Founds:
Sales Tax (Major)

Special Revenue Funds (Nonmajor};

City Share of Specials

Park

Fire

Communications

Buflding Fund

Road and Bridge

{Zaming Funds

PR Y]]

Municipal Highway

Lodging Tax

General Fund Equipment

City Hall Remadeling

New City Shop

Vector Conlrol

Flood Control

DARE

Evidence Police Dept.

Natlonal Night Out

Dug Enforcemant

Fronomic Development

Marcil Job Training Loan

Change Fund

Total Speciat Revenue
Fumds (Nonmajor)

Tolal Special Revenue Funds

Debt Service Funds {(Major):
001 B

2008 G

#8037 - Sidewalk 2004
Sales Tax Revenue Bonds - 2002
Sales Tax Reserve
2002A

2002 B

2003 4

2003

200% B

2003 C

2003D

2003 E

20045,

20048

20054

Sidewalk 6040-2004
Sidewalk 6043 - 2007
Sidewalk 6042-2008
Sidewalk 6044 - 2008
2008-B

2008-C

2005-B

2005-0

2005-C

2006 A

2007A

2007B

2008A

2001 A

#6034 - Sidewalk, 1959
1998 B

#6032 - Sidewalk 1997
2067

1993.8

{#/8039

TIF Bonds Stedling Ind.
TIF Butler

Total Debl Service Funds

Balance Transfers Other Financing Transfers Balance
1-1-DB Revenues In Sources Cut Expendilures 12-31-08
%  4,240,531.68 § 580320807 § 125600061 3% - 0§ - § 647396254 § 3,826,774.60
1,046.551.71 46,404.35 587,515.96 - - 844,188.71 845,283.31
$ 428708327 § 5B4BT0032 § 185442557 % - § - $ 731815125 § 467205791
$  4,686,360.08 $ 2,681,53683 § - 3 - 5 1,264000.00 3 - §  6,103,897.01
S {1,768.03) § 59,28640 8 18,700.80 § - 3 - § 7504226 % a66.8C
- 350,034 .09 - - - 350,034.03 -
28,448,11 514,877.11 - - - 506,796.22 38,329.00
13,000.00 - - - - 250.00 12,750.00
326,746.33 121,718,238 - - - 121,605.70 326,859.91
18,790.68 - - - 418,700.69 - -
74,487.04 21,648,589 - - 10,000.00 - BB,135.63
517,814.55 238,585,689 - - - 331,131.144 42527910
131,823.87 801,301.87 - - 903,125.74 - -
21,418.72 48,881,03 - - - 18,088.68 62,210.07
&57,754.01 4,000.00 - - - {8.51) 65,760.82
72,759.05 407.30 - - - 18,849,98 54,216.37
1,208.10 112.44 - - - 4,320,594 -
7,042.57 63,160.16 - - “ 57,410.00 (27,216.27)
128,747.83 4,188.47 - - - B,753.25 125,183.05
{4,938.98} 24,281.47 - - - 13,423.04 591828
10,395.17 1,001.83 - - - - 11,4B7.00
- 5,003.856 - - - 1,845,84 3,058.01
23.587.21 25,810.68 - - - 15,370.67 24,018.20
60,523.08 447357 - - - - 64,997.56
- 1,113.88 - - - - 1,113.88
300.00 - - - - - 300.00
$ 1460141.73 § 220870769 § 18,790.69 % - 3 03191643 §  1.561,084.27 1,288,778 .41
$ 615850181 5 4875334682 § 1870060 § - % 219591643 $ 1,561,0356.27 7.382675.42
$ 200,532.36 $ 10346733 % - $ - 3 - ] 126,458.50 % 267,541.68
764,233.03 401,320,489 - - - a72,030.25 793,523.87
20,742.02 10,822,438 - - - 14,370,00 17,285.5G
03,033.22 20,145.47 764,000.00 - - F63,740.00 113,438.69
651,408.32 - - - - - 651,408.32
647,134.37 469,474.34 - - - 349,765.50 6B66,843.21
856,723.63 274,082.83 - - - 400,845.50 ¥2%,961.16
1,488,339.10 349,821.88 - - - 440,737 .00 1,408 42598
8,901.70 144,189.78 - - - 134,325.50 19,765.98
1,059,433.89 426,901.63 - 5,6365,000.00 1.328,510.01 5,791,225.50 -
B26,750.96 601,662.63 - - - 793,452 50 724,951,098
865,825 95 458,504.08 - - - 42783574 888,494.20
1,240,590.65 590,828.23 - - - B66,448.50 1,264,970.38
B19,384.06 548 B28.26 - - - 515,837,206 B52,375.08
466,007,221 486,185.96 80,000.00 - - 464,692.50 567,401.67
748,334,18 1,256,857.26 - - - 971,365.00 1,032 936.44
{17,210,04) 20,788,30 - - - 18,387.50 (6,810.14)
(1,934.34) 100,649.76 - - - 34,981.75 63,783.67
38,173.38 42,178.88 - - - a4,201.50 48,080,76
- 34,195.81 - 215,000.0D 187,770.68 6,802.18 54,622,95
- 252,663.0¢ - - 187,020.00 84.548.75 (19,0115.79)
- 1,308,212.40 - - 844,246,80 12,500.00 451,485.60
£19,421.30 1,267,886.22 - - - 1,189,582.50 587,778.02
335,262.02 800,080.16 £0,000.00 - - 673.696.50 511,655,508
1,044,680.94 616,264.23 - - - 668,904.00 992,74%.17
34,987.02 97D,015.54 280,000.00 - - 1,140,517.67 153,485.7¢
1,110,679.94 841,222.86 - - - B46,082.00 1,071,820.60
221,046.00 287.761.91 - - - 382,637.82 156,200.09
L - % B28,923.49 § 1,220363.08 % - $ - $ 1,48800082 "3 470,285.96
600,735,97 299,305,30 - - - 333,943.00 . 566,008.27
51419.26 28,548,658 - - - 34,335.00 45,632.89
734,039,256 29390717 - - - 341,832.00 B86,014.42
28.38 0.71 - - 27.07 - -
1,523,968.45 136,292.51 - - - - 1.560,250.08
26,049,39 28,432,853 - - 18,872.22 36,610.00 -
9,156,72 6,910,32 - . - 6,462.50 9,604.54
121,238.74 126,283,890 - - 210,000.00 - 37,922.63
121,898.87 222,215.00 - - 300,000,00 - 44,111.06
$ 17,334,01257 $ 14,562,994.36 § 250336309 $ 585000000 $ 307744678 § 19,572,20254 § 1758072110
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CITY OF WEST FARGD
Wast Fargo, Morlh Dakota

SCHEDLILE OF FUND ACTIVITY - CLIENT GENERAL LEDGER BASIS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2008

Capit ects Mafor);
Capital Improvemanis
Construction Testing

Golf Course

Bith Strest Interchange

Buller Properiles

Relentlon Shadowwood

Maln Avenue Project

1138 Charleswood Peninsula
1182 Integrity 1st

1185 West Sanitary Lift

1188 Chrlstlanson’s 15t

1193 Shadowwood Addilion
1191 W River/Borderud/Winsor Green
1124 Westpart Beach 2nd

1196 Eagle Run 12th Phase 2
1197 Eagle run 171 8th

1198 DolPsiShiloh

1199 Buflar's Bih

1200 Goldermwood 37d

2199 Hayden Heighis

1201 Shadow Wood 2nd

1203 Bullar's 4th

1204 Bulle’s 4th Phosa 3

1205 Dakota th

1206 Reserve at Osgond

1209 Charleswood 25th

1210 Twin Meadows/Hersch
1202 - 32nd Ave/Shey-81h Streat
2189 9lh SLE/32}40th Avenue
2173 Weslport Beach

2198 8th St E o Main to 1st Avenue
2185184 lo 32nd Ave

2200 3rd S1 E {o Main to 15k Ave
4041 32nd Ave Bridge Replacement
6045 Sidewalk 2008

6044 - 2007 Sidewalk

2157 43th Ava. Wasl

1163 Elmwood Court Frivale
2193 Saction 2020

2191 Pinewood Bivd Extension
4032 Section 29 Waler Retentlon

Total Capital Projects Funds
Tolel Govammentat Funds

Enferprise Funds:

Sewer and Waler Operaling
Waler Tower Malntenance
Sewage Surcharge

wils 2005 Reserve

South Facilities Hoolin

Waste Water Revenue Bands
Southside Well

1208 Walter Trestmeni Plant
Replacement/Depreciation SWOP

Tolal Sewer and Waler
Health and Sanilation Operating

Total Enterprise Funds

Agency Fupds:

Park Sp Assmt 2003-1

*ark Sp Assmt 2007-1

Communily Dev. Black Granl

Tree Planting

Midconlinent Esgrow

Masvin Windows Escrow Sp Assmils

Tolal Agency Funds

Total Primary Government

Balance Transfers Qther Financing Transfars Balance
1-1-C8 Reavenuas in Sources Qui Expenditures 12-3i-08
$ 22149008 § 2284083 § 500,000.00 % - % - § 47362885 % 37051246
41,128,800 1,340.77 - - - 5,840.68 36,619.09
. - - - - 3,064.02 {3,964.02)
{1,758,343.50) - - - - 2,114,702.80 (3,871,047 .30}
(464,000,00) - 100,000,800 - - {384,000.00)
(400,259,80) - 400,269,80 - - - -
{19,596,00) 14.481.20 - - - - 5,865.20
(170.90) - - - B - (170.90}
{56,072.53) - - - - - {56,022.53)
(4,883,205.09) - - - . 3,006,605,81 (7,889,811.80)
(160.00} - - - - 244.272,08 (244,432.08)
{1,676,022.62} - - 4,048,000.06 - 1,674,083,02 408,804.36
148,407.62 - - - 34,222 67 112,184,895 -
{457,184,18) - - 531,000.00 6,070.82 67,745.00 -
7.049.27 - - - 7,049.27 - -
{165.00} 155.00 - - - - -
{120.02) 128.02 - - - - -
{1,878.78) 1,396.78 483.01 - - - -
14,787.47 - - - 14,787.47 - -
- - - 242,000.00 - 257,400,863 [15,490.83})
- - - - - 1,280,228.32 {1.240,228.32)
(757,193.51} - - 858,000.00 - 80,972.12 9,834,37

- - - - - 844,980.73 (844,880.73)

- - - - - 289,500.12 (289,900.12)

- - - 2,3490,000.00 - 2,058,723.72 336,276,283

- - - - - 744,652 48 (714,552.48)

- - - - - 980,08 (999,08)

- - - - - 242,010.74 {242,010.74)

(0,396.23) %,335.24 - - - - -
35,138.02 - - - 33,130.02 - -

- - - 135,000.00 - 148,500.96 (11,508.95)

- - - - - 474,080.33 (474,960.33)

- - - 284 0006.00 - 24811217 165.887.83

- - - - - DB,G50.74 {98,860.74)

- - - - - 343,404.55 (343,404,565}

(177.020.68) - 177,020.68 - - - -
(130,610.55) - - - - 71,000.00 {201,610.,55)

{1,870.47) - 1,870.47 - - - -
{1.007,042.48) - - 1,202,000.00 - 183,032.86 11,824 66

(124 622,15) - - 144,000,00 5,360.85 14,017.00 -

- = - - - 2,058.44 (2,958.44)
$ (11,669,812.14) § 4545883 3% 1.179_.633.98 $ 981500000 % 108,630.10 & 14,960,567.76 §_(15,688,917.24)
$ 1610678591 $ 2547848813 § 566621351 § 1566500000 § 537399331 % 43.411,056.85 $ 13,868.537.10
§ 291082758 § 30BD50730 § - $ - ¥ 80000000 § 3341,232.50 § 3,260,192.29

200,822.36 48,236.12 - - - - 345,068.48
251,266.86 16,809.37 - - - - 28B,065.03
742,750.00 - - - - - 742,750,00
848, 180.93 20,9582 85 117,780.00 - - 79,4G4.00 70547978
5B,366.77 1,900.07 - - - 11,775.00 48,490.84
4,598 673.47 - ~ - - 148,938.47 4,448,735.00
- - e - - 34,118.58 (34,118.58)
40,800.00 - - - - - 30;000.00
5 954387687 & 406852572 % 1 17.78000 % - $ 30000000 5 361652864 $ 081465375
$ 671590406 F 1 VB7100.88 % - $ - 1] - $ 152282272 % 945,877.64
$ 1021546715 § 5,865.535.60 § 417780.00 % - $__300,000.00 § 5138,354.36 § 1D,760,531.39
$ - % 11,10430 3 - § - F - s 11.104.830 & -

- 22,104.83 - - - 22.104,83 -

1,796.95 61.488 - - - - 185841
108,600.28 25,752,984 - - - 3B,177.50 186,184.72
5,000.00 - - - - - 5,000.00
170,658.00 - - - - - ___170,858.00

$ 376,063.83 % §9,02303 % - 8 - 8 ~ 3 7138663 % 36370113
$ 2859831682 8 31.351.147.66 % 5,673,083.31 & 16,885,000.00  § 5,673,093.31 3 4862169484 § 25,092,760.71
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CITY OF WEST FARGO
Waest Fargs, Morh Dakota

SCHEDOULE OF FUND ACTIVITY - CLIENT GENERAL LEDGER BASIS
Far the Year Ended Cecember 31, 2008

Compoaent Ynlts:
Alrport;

Airport General

Airport Construction
Tolal Airport

Library:

Libsary Genersl
Library Memorials
Tolal Library

Tolal Componant Units

Tatal Reporting Enlily

Balance Transfers Other Financing Transfers Balance
1-1-08 Revenues Expenditures 12-31-D8
% 64,5286 § 166,461.99 - - - 142,28862 % B8 716.02
B.25 0,08 - - - - 68.34
i 6454210 & 166,462.08 - - - 142,288.82 % 88,722.36
3 236,705.71 %  SB5410.78 - - - 550,848.53 § 261,266.94
2,116.68 580,10 - - - - 2 £65.68
$ 23882120 $  585.990,86 - - - 560,849.53 § 263,96262
3 303,370.30 % 752,452.84 - - - 70913835 § 352,684.98

27,001,687.28

32,103,600,60

5,673,993.84

15,665,000.00 _§ 5673,993.39

43,324,833,19 _ § 25445454.69



LOCAL GOVERNMENT DIVISION:
FARGO OFFICE
MANAGEH - DAVID MIX
(701} 2397252
FAX (701) 230-7251

STATE AUDITOR
- ROBERT R. PETERSON
PHONE
(701) 328-2241
FAX
(701) 328-1408

STATE OF NORTH DAKCTA

OFFICE OF THE STATE AUDITOR

600 E. BOULEVARD AVENLIE - DEPT. 117
BISMARCK, ND 58505

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANGE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANGCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

City Commissianers
City of West Fargo
West Fargo, North Dakota

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-lype activities, the
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the City of West Fargo, North Dakota as of and for the year ended December 31, 2008, which collectively
comprise the City's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated August 3, 2009.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits confained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Gity of West Fargo’s internal control over financial
reporting as & basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City
of West Fargo’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City of West Fargo's internal contral over financial reporting.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not aflow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned funciions, to prevent or detect
missiatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control
deficiencies, that adverseiy affects the City's abllity to initiate, authorize, record, process, or repori
financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such that there is more
than a remofe likelihood that a misstatement of the City's financial statements that is more than
inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the City’s Internal control. We consider the
deficiency described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses to be a significant
deficiency in internal control over financial reporting. The significant deficiencies are described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 08-01 and 08-02.

A material weakness is a significant deficlency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in
more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be
prevented or detected by the City's internal confrol.

Our consideration of internal controf over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this seclion and would not necessarily Identify all deficiencies in internal contral that
might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies In internal
contral over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.
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Compliance and Other Mailers

As part of obtaining reasonabla assurance about whether the City of West Fargo's financial statements
are free of material misstatement, we peiformed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, coniracts, and grant agreements, noncampliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tesis disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that is required
to be reparted under Government Auditing Standards.

The City of West Fargo's responses fo the find]nés identified in our audit are described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the City of West Fargos

responses and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the City Commissionars, others
within the City, and is not intended to bs and should not be used by anyone other than these specified

parties.

&@M

Robert R. Peterson
State Auditor

August 3, 2009
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CITY OF WEST FARGO
Woest Fargo, North Dakota

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2008

Section I - Summary of Auditor’'s Results

Financial Statements

Type of Repoit Issued?

Governmental Activities Unqualified
Business-Type Aclivities Unqualified
Discretely Presented Component Units Ungualified
Major Funds Ungualified
Aggregate Remaining Fund Information Unqualified

Iniernal Control over financial reparting:
Material weaknesses identified? Yes X No

Reportable conditions identified not considered to be
material weaknesses? X Yes

Noncompliance material to financial statements
noted? Yes X No

Section II - Financial Statement Findings

I 08-01 — FRAUD RISK ASSESSMENT PROCESS & CONTROLS

Condition:

The Gity of West Fargo does not have a written fraud risk management program in place to specifically
identify fraud risks. This includes not having: 1} policies or procedures relating to & formal systematic risk
asgessment process which should include a thorough fraud risk assessment, Including channsls for
reparting suspected instances of impropriety; and, 2) adequate written policies relating to background
investigations. Furthermore, the city does not do regular overall entity wide risk analysis and develop
procedures to address identified risks.

Criteria:

Generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America require the developmen.t of a
fraud risk management program and controls. The standards include discussions about the importance of
adequate risk assessment, background investigations, as well as fraud management programs and
contrals.

Effect:

Without adequate fraud risk programs and conirols the City of West Fargo exposes itself to risk of loss of
assels, potential liabilities, and damage to the City's reputation. Without an adequate fraud management
program in place, employees within the City are unaware of the proper channels to report suspected
instances of impropriety.
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CITY OF WEST FARGO
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Cosfs - Continued

Recommendation:

We recommend that the City of West Fargo develop and implement policies at an overall entity level
including procedures specificaily relating to a thorough fraud risk assessment and developing a policy and
channels for reporting suspected instances of impropriety. We further recommend the City conduct
overall entity wide risk assessments on a periodic basis and develop procedures/controls to address any
risks identified. The governing board should be involved in these processes.

Views of Responsible Officials:

The City of West Fargo is working on implementing specific policles and procedures relating to fraud risk
management programs and contrals, as well as on overall enfity risk assessment process involving the
governing board.

|_08-02 — ACCRUING MATERIAL ACCOUNTS PAYABLE — CONSTRUCTION FUNDS IE

Condition:
The City of West Fargo did not accrue a material accounts payable in the capital projects major fund
totaling $578,004 to their financial statements. Planning materiality was calculated at $459,000 for the

capital projects major fund. The City did make a working paper adjustment to the 2008 financial
statements to report the material proposed audit adjustment.

Criteria;

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in the United States of America and strong internal control over
the preparation of complete and accurale financial statements reguire the accrual of accounts payable in
the financial statements.

Effect:

The 2008 financial statements are misstated by $578,004 in the capital projects major fund. This caused a
misstatement In liabilities and fund balance of 3.4% and a misstatement of expenditures of 3.8%.

Recommendation:

We recommend that the City review January invoices of the following vear to search for potential
unrecorded accounts payable and accrus at feast significant/material accounts payable in the year-end
financial stafements.

Views of Responsible Officlais:

The City accrued the proposed material accounts payable in the capitat projects fund for 2008. Going
forward, the GCity will review invoices in January of each subsequent year to determine if significant
accounts payable exisis at year-end for accrual into the financial statements.
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